
  

 
 

2011 

 

Minturn Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday February 16, 2011 
 

  

 

Regular Session:   6:00pm 
    (Town Center) 

 

 

 

 

 

Council Goals:   

   

TOP FIVE COUNCIL PRIORITIES: 

 Entry Signs 

 Sidewalk Installations 

 Street repairs with drainage (by priority) 

 100% completion of telemetry 

 Implement streetscape plan 
 



Minturn Town Council  
February 16, 2011 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 

 
Agenda 

 
MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

 
Wednesday February 16, 2011 

 
Regular Session – 6:00pm 

 
MAYOR – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty            TOWN MANAGER – Jim White   

MAYOR PRO TEM – George Brodin   TOWN CLERK/TREAS – Jay Brunvand 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS:  
Shelley Bellm 
Earle Bidez 

Jerry Bumgarner 
Aggie Martinez 
John Rosenfeld 

 
 

When addressing the Council, please state your name and your address for the record prior to providing your 
comments. Please address the Council as a whole through the Mayor. All supporting documents are available for 

public review in the Town Offices – located at 302 Pine Street, Minturn CO 81645 – during regular business hours 
between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

 
 

 
Regular Session – 6:00pm 

 
1. Call to Order 

a. Roll Call 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Minturn Town Council  
February 16, 2011 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
 

2. Executive Session - Pursuant to CRS 24-6-402(4)(b) to consult with the Town's 
Attorney(s) and receive direction regarding the negotiations of the Battle Mountain 
Resort property annexation and water right issues – White/Christensen 

 
Regular Session – 7:00pm 

 
3. Executive Session – Action by Council or Direction to Staff as a result of the 

Executive Session (5min) 
 

4. Approval of Agenda  
a. Items to be Pulled or Added 

 
5. Approval of Minutes and Action Report  

 February 2, 2011 
 Action Item Report 
 

6. Public comments on items, which are NOT on the agenda (5 minute time limit per 
person) 

 
7. Special Presentations/Citizen Recognition 

 Battle Mountain update from David Kleinkopf (20 min) 
 John Stavney, Eagle County Commissioner, US Forest Service land swap issues 

(30 min) 
 

8. Planning Commission Update 
 

9. Town Manager’s Report  
 

10. Town Council Comments  
 
 
 
 

11. Discussion/Action – Applicant appeal of January 12, 2011 Design Review Board 
decision regarding the Hotel Minturn Project at 115 Nelson Ave. – Cerimele (30 
min) 
 

12. Discussion/Action – Resolution 2 – 2011: A Resolution of the Town Council  of the 
Town of Minturn, Colorado establishing eligibility for annexation of the Eagle 
County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 1 – Cerimele (20 min) 
 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 15

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 10

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 11

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 25

mmetteer
Typewritten Text

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 49 & 63



Minturn Town Council  
February 16, 2011 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 

13. Discussion/Action - Resolution 3 – 2011: A Resolution of the Town Council  of the 
Town of Minturn, Colorado establishing eligibility for annexation of the Eagle 
County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 2 – Cerimele (10 min) 
 

14. Discussion/Action – Authorization to file an amendment to the decree in Water 
Court Case Nos. 05CW262 and 07CW225 – White (15min) 
 

15. Discussion/Action – Extension of Holy Cross Franchise Agreement – White (10 min) 
 
 
 

 
16. Next Meeting 

a. Work Session – Develop agenda for April 6 Council meeting with County 
Commissioners. March 2, 2011 
 

17. Future Meeting 
 Eva Wilson – Transportation discussion. Mar 16, 2011 
 Work Session – 2009 IBC. March 16, 2011 
 Discussion/Action – 2009 IBC. March 16, 2011 
 County Commissioners to attend Minturn Council Meeting – April 6 
 Ordinance annexing to the Town of Minturn Maloit Park Parcel No. 1  (tbd) 
 Ordinance annexing to the Town of Minturn Maloit Park Parcel No. 2  (tbd) 
 Ordinance authorizing the Mayor to sign an annexation agreement. (tbd) 
 Ordinance amending the official zone district map and creating the Maloit Park 

Character Area. (tbd) 
 

18. Set Future Meeting Dates 
a) Council Meetings: 
 March 2, 2011 
 March 16, 2011 
 April 6, 2011 

 
b) Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings: 
 February 23, 2011 
 March 9, 2011 
 March 23, 2011 

 
   c) Other Dates: 

 
19. Adjournment  

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 66

mmetteer
Typewritten Text
pg 71

mmetteer
Typewritten Text



C:\Users\mmetteer\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\QZHQVNRM\MEMO-
EXECUTIVE SESSION.doc 

 
FROM THE DESK OF 

JAY BRUNVAND, TREASURER/FINANCE 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:    Minturn Town Council 
FROM: Jay Brunvand, Treasurer/Clerk 
CC:   
DATE:  Friday, February 11, 2011 
RE:   Executive Session 
 
At tonight’s meeting the Council will need to convene in Executive Session with the 
Town Attorney(s) to discuss the Battle Mountain project and related water issues. The 
following motion is recommended: 
 
“Recommended motion: “I move to convene in Executive Session Pursuant to CRS 24-6-
402(4)(b) for the purpose of consulting with the Town’s attorney(s) and receive direction 
regarding the negotiations of the Battle Mountain Resort property annexation and water 
right issues.” 
 

The Mayor will announce for the record if any decision is to be made as a result of the 
Executive Session once the Regular Session meeting reconvenes. 
 
Please contact me in the event you have any questions. 
 
Thank You, Jay 
 

TOWN OF MINTURN 
P.O. Box 309 (302 Pine Street) 
Minturn, Colorado 81645-0309 

970-827-5645 Fax: 970-827-5545 
treasurer@minturn.org 

_________________________________________________________________________   

1



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 1 of 7 

 
 
 

 
Official Minutes 

 
MEETING OF THE MINTURN TOWN COUNCIL 

Minturn Town Center, 302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 • (970) 827-5645 

 
Wednesday February 2, 2011 

 
Work Session - 5:30pm 

Regular Session – 7:00pm 
 

MAYOR – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty            TOWN MANAGER – Jim White   
MAYOR PRO TEM – George Brodin   TOWN CLERK/TREAS – Jay Brunvand 

 
COUNCIL MEMBERS:  

Shelley Bellm 
Earle Bidez 

Jerry Bumgarner 
Aggie Martinez 
John Rosenfeld 

 
 

These minutes are formally submitted to the Town of Minturn Town Council for approval as the official written record of the 
proceedings at the identified Council Meeting.  Additionally, all Council meetings are tape-recorded and are available to the 

public for listening at the Town Center Offices from 8:30am – 2:00 pm, Monday through Friday, by contacting the Town Clerk at 
970/824-5645 302 Pine St. Minturn, CO 81645 

 
 

Work Session – 5:30pm 
 

 Discussion of information transfer between the Town Council and the Planning 
Commission – Cerimele (15min) 

 Discussion/Action – Final draft for Open Fire Ordinance & Nuisance Ordinance 
discussion – Cerimele (15min)  

 Downtown Colorado Inc Plan & Community Revitalization Plan. – Cerimele (45 
min) 
 

 
Regular Session – 7:00pm 

 
1. Call to Order 

 

2



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 2 of 7 

a. Roll Call 
b. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Flaherty at 7:04 pm.  

Those present included: Mayor Hawkeye Flaherty, Mayor Pro Tem George Brodin, Council 
Members Shelley Bellm, Jerry Bumgarner, John Rosenfeld, Aggie Martinez, and Earle Bidez.  
Staff present: Town Manager Jim White, Town Treasurer/Clerk Jay Brunvand, Chief of Police 
Lorenzo Martinez, Administrative Assistant/Deputy Clerk Michelle Metteer, Planner Chris 
Cerimele and Attorney Allen Christensen.  

 
2. Approval of Agenda  

 Items to be Pulled or Added 
 
Motion by Shelley B., second by George B., to approve the agenda as amended, all voted in 
favor. 
 

3. Minturn Liquor Authority 
 Consideration of a new Hotel/Restaurant liquor license for Magustos, Inc; 101 Main 

Street; Eric Cregon, Owner/Manager – Brunvand 
 
The Mayor opened the Public Hearing and referred the item to the Town Clerk for staff 
presentation. 
 
Motion by John R., second by Shelley B., to set the definition of “Neighborhood” as the entire 
Town of Minturn. All voted in favor. 
 
Chief Lorenzo Martinez submitted a report within the Council packet, recommending approval 
of the license with conditions. 
 
Mr. Eric Cregon, 206 Eagle St, Red Cliff, CO, provided background information regarding the 
history of the license application. 
 
No members of the public stepped forward to comment on this application. 
 
Motion by Jerry B., second by George B., to approve a Hotel/Restaurant liquor license to 
Magustos LLC located at 101 Main St based on the findings that the applicant has established 
reasonable requirements of the neighborhood, and desires of the inhabitants of the neighborhood 
support granting the application as presented with the following conditions; all voted yes. 
 

 As a minimum the licensee, manager and a server be T.I.P.S (Training for Intervention 
Procedures) or similarly server trained. Additionally a certified server be on duty at all 
times while alcoholic beverages are served. This condition is to be met prior to opening 
and updated as needed, with documentation provided to the police department. 

 The Liquor Authority has emphasized the requirement of operating an orderly 
establishment, and the proprietor has acknowledged the same stipulation. 

3



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 3 of 7 

 
4. Approval of Minutes and Action Report  

 January 5, 2011 
 Action Item Report 
 

Motion by Shelley B., second by John R., to approve the minutes of January 5, 2010 as amended, 
all voted in favor. 

 
Direction by staff to amend the minutes to reflect the Vail Ski and Snowboard Academy to Vail 
Ski and Snowboard Club. 

 
5. Public comments on items, which are NOT on the agenda (5 minute time limit per 

person).  
 
6. Special Presentations/Citizen Recognition 

 Volunteers and Residents to be recognized 
i. Susana Miranda 

ii. Recognition for Holiday Donations 
1. Vail Dispatch 
2. Salvation Army 
3. Anonymous Community Donors 

 
7. Town Manager’s Report  

 
Radio Tower Contract/Legal Action 
 
At the court date on Friday, January 7, 2011 at the Eagle County District Court in Eagle, 
Colorado, the Town of Minturn was given possession of the tower and all past due rent. Our 
Town Attorney will provide an update as it becomes available. 
 
School District RFP Submittals 
 
RFP’s to consider re-purposing ideas for the Minturn Middle School were turned in on Thursday 
January 13, 2011. Review of the two proposals is underway this month. A decision on future 
uses of the school is expected in February. The School Board meets February 9, 2011. 
(Amendment: discussion of this item by the School Board will now be at its March 9, 2011 
meeting). 
 
LaFarge Fence 
 
La Farge installed a fence to block the visual gateway to its facility and also in an effort to 
reduce the level of noise coming from the facility while operations are in full swing. Since the 
installation, the plant has been closed so we will have to wait to determine how successful the 
fence will prove to be as a noise barrier (photos are included). 
 
I-70 Coalition 

4



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 4 of 7 

 
The Town continues to participate with the I-70 Coalition. At the last meeting on Thursday, 
January 13, 2011, all participants received a copy of Resolution #TC-1938 from the 
Transportation Committee awarding $2.33 million in FASTER State Transit Funds for fiscal 
year 2011 to the I-70 Mountain Corridor AGS Feasibility Study requested by Region 1 (see copy 
enclosed). In addition, MOVE Colorado, is reaching out to citizens across the state to build 
support for implementing a 21st Century transportation system in Colorado and to prepare 
Colorado residents for future transportation investments (see Fact Sheet enclosed). 
 
Governor Hickenlooper Visited Eagle County 
 
On Friday, January 14, 2011, Governor Hickenlooper began a series of meetings throughout the 
state to elicit commentary about economic development. The first meeting was held at the 
Singletree Community Center in Edwards. 
 
Signage 
 
Preliminary contact has been made with individuals and companies that may be engaged to help 
with the actual construction of the Town signage. Staff is also continuing to work with the USFS 
on written justification needed to complete the Special Use Permit for our welcome signs. 
Pending approval from the USFS to install signage on its property, Town staff will be working 
on the construction and final design elements of the sign over the winter in anticipation of 
installation in the spring. 
 
Battle Mountain Update 
 
Anticipating a response from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) related to the Battle 
Mountain project, we have scheduled a return visit form Dave Kleinkopf to provide an update to 
Town Council. Dave is scheduled to be present at the February 16, 2011 meeting.  
 
Changes in Parking Limits/Parking Passes 
 
Downtown parking restrictions originally this year limited parking in the 100 block from 9am 
through 4pm, Mondays and Wednesday on the east side of the street, and Tuesdays and 
Thursdays from 9am through 4pm. Subsequently, parking limits in both the 100 and 200 Blocks 
of Main Street were reduced to 9am-2pm.  
 
Effective in January, 2011, a pilot program was launched limiting parking restrictions in the 100 
Block of Main Street in Minturn, on the same specified days, from only 9am through noon. This 
pilot program on the 100 Block was introduced to further improve access to local residents and 
businesses. In addition, parking is provided in the Municipal Lot as Public Works is clearing a 
section of the Municipal Lot at 6am-7am Monday-Friday. Finally, overnight parking passes will 
be issued for qualified residents or businesses from the 100 Block beginning January 28, 2011. 
Written notices of all these changes have been and will be hand delivered. 
 
 

5



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 5 of 7 

8. Town Council Comments  
 
 
 
 
 

9. Discussion/Action – Notification of Applicant Appeal of Design Review Board 
Decision - Cerimele 
 

Motion by Earle B., second by Shelley B., to set the appeal hearing for 115 Nelson Ave, Hotel 
Minturn for February 16, 2011. All voted in favor. 

 
 
 
 
Hawkeye convened the GID Board and noted all members of the Council were present and that 
Ms. Sarah Baker was present to Represent Battle Mountain Resort but that Mr. David Kleinkopf 
was not in attendance. 
 

10. Convene as GID Board 
 
11. Approval of Agenda   
 

Motion by George B., second by John R., to approve the GID board agenda as presented. All 
voted in favor. 

 
12. Review and Approval of November 3, 2010 GID Board Meeting minutes. 
 

Motion by John R., second by Aggie M., to approve the November 3, 2010 GID Board Meeting 
Minutes. All voted in favor. George B., abstained. 

 
13. Financial Matters 

 Discuss and consideration for approval of Minturn GID Resolution 2011-02-01 an 
Application for Exemption from Audit – Brunvand (5min) 

 
Motion by Jerry B., second by Shelley B., to approve the GID Resolution 2011-02-01 an 
Application for Exemption from Audit. All voted in favor. 
 

14. Other Business 
 Next GID Board Meeting set for November 2, 2011 7:00pm at the Minturn Town 

Center, 302 Pine Street, Minturn, CO 81645 – Brunvand (5min) 
 
It was noted the November 2, 2011 meeting had been set at the November 3, 2010 Board 
meeting and no action was required. 
 

15. Adjourn as GID Board; convene as Minturn Town Council 

PUBLIC HEARINGS AND ACTION ITEMS 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

6



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 6 of 7 

 
Motion by Shelley B., second by Aggie M., to adjourn as GID Board and convene as the Minturn 
Town Council. All voted in favor. 
 
 
 
 

16. Next Meeting 
 Discussion/Action – Resolution establishing annexation eligibility of the Eagle 

County School District Maloit Park Parcels No. 1 & 2 – Cerimele (15min each) –
Feb 16 

 Discussion/Action – Battle Mountain update from David Kleinkopf 
 John Stavney, Eagle County Commissioner, US Forest Service land swap issues 
 Discussion/Action –Appeal Hearing for 115 Nelson Ave, Tom Sullivan  

 
17. Future Meeting 

 Discussion/Action – 2009 IBC March 2, 2011 
 Work Session – Develop agenda for April 6 Council meeting with County 

Commissioners. March 2, 2011 
 Eva Wilson – Transportation discussion. March 16, 2011 
 County Commissioners to attend Minturn Council Meeting – April 6 (work 

session in a prior meeting to develop agenda) 
 

18. Set Future Meeting Dates 
 

a) Council Meetings: 
 February 16, 2011 
 March 2, 2011 
 March 16, 2011 

 
b) Planning & Zoning Commission Meetings: 
 February 9, 2011 
 February 23, 2011 
 March 9, 2011 

 
   c) Other Dates: 

 
19. Adjournment  

 
Motion by Jerry B., second by Earle B., to adjourn at 8:10pm. All voted in favor. 

 
Work Session 

 
20. Town Council Goals 

 Entryway Signage at the north and south ends of Town, as well as coinciding signage 
for Little Beach Park 

 Sidewalk Installation 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

7



Minturn Town Council  
February 2, 2011 
Page 7 of 7 

 Focus and strengthen Special Events  
 Plan Phase II of the Eco Trail 
 Coordinated Marketing Plan 
 Transit 

 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Mayor Hawkeye Flaherty 

 
ATTEST: 

 
_______________________________ 
Town Clerk, Jay Brunvand 
 
 

8



M:\Clerks Office\2011 Action Reports\02-16-2011 Action Report.doc 

 Town of Minturn 
Council Action Item Memo  

 
TO:  Staff Members/Council Members 
FROM: Jim White/ Town Manager 
DATE:           February 16, 2011 
SUBJECT: Status of Action Items from Town Council Meetings 
                                                                                                 
 

Action Item Responsible 
Party 

Progress Report 

Water Plant Land Deed: Work with Eagle County School 
District. Water plant is occupying Maloit Park. 

White/Christensen Public hearing on a Resolution establishing eligibility for annexation 
scheduled for February 16, 2011 meeting. 

Town entry sign: Requirements with USFS being resolved White/Brodin Continuing to modify & review design. Reviewing USFS Special Use 
Permit guidelines a template has been created. Seeking input from sign 
design companies. 

Draft open burning regulations as an amendment to the 
2009 International Fire Code. 

Cerimele Changes from Feb 2nd Council Meeting have been  incorporated in draft 
report and will be presented to Council 3/16/11. 

Review Building Fees Cerimele Reviewing comparisons with similar size municipalities. Provide 
recommendation by 3/16/11. 

Draft Medical Marijuana Ordinance-Staff level Brunvand/Metteer Follow regulatory schedule to meet July 1st deadline. 

 

9



Page 1 of 1 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To:         Minturn Town Council 
Cc:   Jim White, Town Manager 
From:    Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
Re:        2.9.11 Planning Commission Meeting Update 
Date:    February 11, 2011  
 
On February 9, 2011, the Planning Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval of 
the Amendment to the Official Zone District Map of the Town of Minturn for the Maloit 
Park Area.  The zoning map amendment will create the Maloit Park Character Area 
that is comprised of the following zoning districts: 
 

 Public Facilities Zone (18.156 acres) 
 Recreation / Open Space Zone (39.535 acres) 
 Mix Use Zone (46.861 acres) 

   
The Commission was primarily concerned with the potential loss of the Town’s only 
active recreation fields with the proposal.  Staff advised the Commission that they 
would have the opportunity to review and make recommendations on any future 
subdivision proposal and that a subdivision improvement agreement between the 
Town and developer would be required at the time of final plat approval.  This 
agreement would include a common open space, park, and recreation area plan.  
The Commission pointed out that there were no quantifiable requirements for parks 
and open space in our subdivision regulations. and that they would like to work on 
creating new standards for parks and open space in the Town’s subdivision 
regulations.   
 
Prior to the vote on the Amendment to the Official Zone District Map, the Commission 
added the following recommendation to the approval Resolution: 
 

 At the time of subdivision review, the open space and recreation plan of the 
subdivision improvement agreement shall provide reasonable public access to 
the Recreation / Open Space Zone through the Mixed Use Zone of the Maloit 
Park Character Area. 

 
The Town Council will hold a public hearing in March to vote on the proposed 
Amendment to the Official Zone District Map. 

Post Office Box 309 
302 Pine Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 
Phone: 970-827-4272 

Fax: 970-827-7420 
 
 

Town Council 
Mayor – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty 

Mayor Pro Tem – George Brodin 
Councilwoman – Shelley Bellm 
Councilman – Jerry Bumgarner 
Councilman – Aggie Martinez 

Councilman – Earle Bidez 
Councilman – John Rosenfeld 

 

10



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
To:  Mayor Flaherty and Minturn Town Council 
From:  Jim White, Town Manager 
Date:   February 10, 2011 
Re:   Manager’s Report for the February 16, 2011 Meeting 
 
Eagle County Seeking Business Licenses In Unincorporated Areas 
Enclosed please find an e-mail I received in January from Bryan Treu, Eagle County 
Attorney regarding the County’s interest in pursuing business registration and licenses 
in unincorporated areas of Eagle County. Other counties have expressed support for 
this prospect and Colorado Counties, Inc may back legislation in this year’s legislative 
session. I have also included an information sheet provided by Eagle County (see 
attachments). 
 
Eagle County/State Land Board/USFS                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
Consider Land Swaps 
Eagle County Commissioner, Jon Stavney will be present tonight to present and 
summarize ongoing communication among several entities involving potential land 
swaps or purchases. The Town Council can weigh in on the potential interest in the 
Bone Yard property in tandem with the Eagle County Open Space Committee. In 
another correspondence from the USFS, USFS District Ranger, Dave Neely, outlines 
another proposal involving land exchange involving the Colorado State land Board, the 
Upper Eagle Regional Water Authority, and the Forest Service. Western Land Group, 
Inc has been retained by Eagle County to facilitate the land exchange and serve as the 
point of contact for the Forest Service (see attachments). 
 
School District RFP Submittals 
 
RFP’s to consider re-purposing ideas for the Minturn Middle School were turned in on 
Thursday January 13, 2011. Review of the two proposals is in progress. A decision on 
future uses of the school is expected in March. The School Board has pushed the 
review to the March 9, 2011 meeting. 
 
Eagle County Economic Development Plan 
Eagle County is supporting efforts among all jurisdictions and unincorporated areas to 
engage in creation of a county wide economic development plan in response to the 
request form Governor Hickenlooper. Chris Romer, Vail Valley Partnership and Don 
Cohen, Eagle County Economic Development Coordinator, are leading the efforts. 
I have arranged for them to come to the March 2, 2011 Town Council meeting to 
highlight the proposed approach and to get input form the Minturn Town Council, staff,  
and any others present at the meeting. 
 

Jim White 
 Town Manager 

P.O. Box 309  302 Pine Street 
Minturn, CO 81645 

Phone: 970-827-5645 
Fax: 970-827-5545 

Email: manager@minturn.org 
 
 
 

 

Town Council 
Mayor – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty 

Mayor Pro Tem – George Brodin 
Councilmember – Shelley Bellm 

Councilmember – Earle Bidez 
Councilmember – Jerry Bumgarner 
Councilmember – Aggie Martinez 
Councilmember – John Rosenfeld 

 

11



2/11/2011 

 

Signage 
Preliminary contact has been made with several individuals and companies that may be 
engaged to help with the actual construction of the Town signage. Staff is also 
continuing to work with the USFS on written justification needed to complete the Special 
Use Permit for our welcome signs. Pending approval from the USFS to install signage 
on its property, Town staff will be working on the construction and final design elements 
of the sign over the winter in anticipation of installation in the spring. 
 
Battle Mountain Update 
Dave Kleinkopf will be present tonight to address Town Council about the recent 
response from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) related to the Battle 
Mountain project.  
 
USFS/Receives Favorable Ruling in Upper Eagle Beetle Salvage Lawsuit 
The Town of Minturn received notice from Dave Neely, USFS District Ranger, indicating 
that the USFS was upheld on all points in the legal challenge to the Upper Eagle River 
Beetle Salvage Project (forwarded via e-mail to Town Council). 
 
Holy Cross Franchise Agreement Extension 
The Town of Minturn and Holy Cross representatives met on February 9, 2011 to begin 
review of the existing Franchise Agreement. Our current temporary extension 
terminates on March 4, 2011. We will be seeking another extension to enable us to 
reach a long term agreement. We agreed to ask our respective Board/Council to extend 
the agreement through September 21, 2011. 

12



 

 

From: Bryan Treu [mailto:Bryan.Treu@eaglecounty.us]  
Sent: Thursday, January 13, 2011 12:39 PM 
To: jeff@townofgypsum.com; szemler@vailgov.com; ruth@marcinengineering.com; 
bilk@basalt.net; willy@townofeagle.org; lbrooks@avon.org; Jim White 
Subject: county business registration 

All, 
 
For years, Eagle County has tried to push legislation to license businesses in Eagle County.  We 
wanted the same power as municipalities in this regard and felt this would be a useful tool to 
legitimize businesses here in the County.  Our hope was to eliminate some of the fly-by-night 
businesses and make a more level playing field for all businesses whether housed in 
municipalities or in unincorporated parts of the county.  We also have no current way to know 
when new businesses open to ensure real, personal, and sales taxes are being paid. 
 
Licensing has not been well received by other counties.  There is concern that this would be 
used as a way to tax existing businesses.  Our intention was to keep costs associated with the 
program to a minimum and not use this as a revenue source.   
 
We do have a representative willing to carry legislation to require businesses to register with 
the counties.  This is short of licensing, but would give us information on existing 
businesses.  Some of the information we initially thought would be useful would be number of 
employees, type of work, how they verify and document workers, and whether they provide 
medical coverage.   We could use this information to ensure all businesses are paying taxes, 
make sales tax projections, make housing and social service needs projections, etc.,  Attached is 
a white paper giving further detail on the County’s proposal for the registration of local 
businesses.   
 
If you have time, please take a look and let me know how registering/licensing businesses has 
benefited your respective towns.  Let me know if you can think of other information that would 
be of a benefit to seek in such a program.  As always, thanks and do not hesitate to contact me 
with any questions. 
 
Bryan R. Treu 

County Attorney 
500 Broadway 
P.O. Box 850  

Eagle, Colorado 81631  

( 970)  328-8685 T 

( 970)  328-8699 F 

 

13



COUNTY REGISTRATION OF PERSONS OR ENTITIES THAT DO BUSINESS LOCALLY 
 

A. CURRENT LAW 
 

Colorado boards of county commissioners have been delegated the power and authority to regulate 
only certain businesses whose activities have been deemed matters of purely local concern.   Those 
businesses have been identified by statute as the removal and transportation of trash, escort bureaus, second 
hand dealers, pawnbrokers, door-to-door salespersons, nude entertainment establishments and alarm 
system companies.  See C.R.S., §§ 30-15-401.  In addition, Colorado counties have the authority to license 
building contractors, liquor establishments and medical marijuana dispensaries. See C.R.S. §§ 30-11-125, 12-
47-301, et. seq., and 12-43.3-101, et. seq.  However, no statutory provision currently provides the Board with 
the general power to license or require the registration of other local businesses. 
 

B. EAGLE COUNTY’S PROPOSAL 
 

Eagle County would like the statutory authority (or option) to create a business registration program 
whereby counties could collect the following information: 

  
 Who is doing business in the county? 

o What is the nature of the business? 
o Where and when does the business operate? 

 How many people are employed by a particular business?  
o Does the numbers of employees change based on tourism during the year?  What is the number 

of employees during low, average and peak seasons? 
 Does the employer offer health insurance? 
 How are the employees documented?   

o Does the business use the e-verify program? 
 

Eagle County proposes that fees allowed in connection with a registration program be limited so as 
to offset administrative costs only, rather than to generate revenue.   

 

C. EAGLE COUNTY’S OBJECTIVE 
 

Colorado counties will benefit from the collection of such information in a number of ways, all of which 
are related to legitimate government purposes:   
 

 From an economic standpoint: 
o It will assist the Assessor in assessing taxable property. 
o It will allow the County and other jurisdictions to forecast sales taxes that will be collected. 
o It will allow the County to confirm that all applicable taxes are being paid. 

 

 From a social services perspective: 
o Information about the number of employees working in Eagle County and the number of 

individuals that are potentially uninsured will be beneficial to our Health and Human Services 
Department (and local hospitals, etc,) for purposes of forecasting future demands. 

o Information about the number of employees working in Eagle County will be useful in terms of 
more accurately assessing current and future housing needs. 

 

 From a community service/economic development perspective: 
o It will be helpful to know how many people actually work within the county and the types of 

work that they are engaged. 
o County residents could be provided with a list or business directory of locally registered business 

people when selecting professional service providers. 
o The registration requirement will help to legitimize local businesses that pay taxes and employ 

local residents, while preventing those businesses who use illegal workers from flourishing.   

14



 

From: Jon Stavney [mailto:Jon.Stavney@eaglecounty.us]  
Sent: Monday, January 31, 2011 2:10 PM 
To: Jim White 
Cc: #Commissioners; Clifford Simonton; Kris Valdez; Jill Klosterman; dneely@fs.fed.us; 
macdonald@erwc.org 
Subject: Follow up on USFS parcels 

Jim, 
 
In follow up to our conversation last week about the USFS admin sites, I have since spoken with 
Dave Neely and staff here at the County and modified the efforts somewhat.    You were right 
that the Martin Creek and the Compound sites are linked and have to be sold together.  Though 
I would love to preserve/and develop this parcel, I think it will prove too expensive.  Also a 
private developer that bids on these will have to go through the Town for approval, and you 
can dictate through annexation that they adhere largely to the plans outlined in your Main 
Street exercise with DOLA.    I had intended to have Jill in our housing office attempt to put 
together a consortium entities to make a bid with a mutual interest in developing public 
housing on the Compound site, upon further discussion, I think it prudent to focus our efforts 
on putting a bid in that would preserve the Boneyard parcel across the road. Reasons for this 
are as follows. 
 

1.       Boneyard as riverfront parcel fits nicely as an OS/park parcel, and is well positioned 
for funding partners 

2.       Putting together an OS/housing funding deal for the other parcel will be very difficult 
3.       Dave believes he can convince those at USFS to putting the Boneyard parcel back on 

this track, he is less confident with other parcel 
 
I’ve spoken with Kris and Cliff at the County.  They will be contacting you about starting to 
sketch out a funding proposal to go through OSAC for the Boneyard.   Please check in with your 
Board to be sure they are interested in this course of action. 
 
Thanks.  
 
Jon Stavney 
County Commissioner 
Eagle County Government 
970.328.8605 t 
970.328.8629 f 
www.eaglecounty.us 
 

15

http://www.eaglecounty.us/


16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM COVER SHEET 
 

 

AGENDA TITLE: Resolution No. 2 - 2011; A Resolution Establishing Eligibility For 
Annexation of the Eagle County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 1 and  
Resolution No. 3 – 2011;  A Resolution Establishing Eligibility For Annexation of the Eagle 
County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 2 
MEETING DATE:  February 16, 2011 

PRESENTER:  Chris Cerimele 

BACKGROUND:  The Eagle County School District RE50J has submitted two annexation 
petitions for the Maloit Park area.  The Town Council passed two Resolutions at their 
January 5, 2011 hearing for the purpose of setting the public hearing date for February 16, 
2011 to determine whether the parcels are eligible for annexation.  The attached report 
concludes that the two parcels ARE eligible for annexation.   
 
Passage of these Resolutions will certify that the eligibility requirements for annexation 
have been met and that the parcels can be annexation into the Town of Minturn by 
Ordinance.   

CORE ISSUES: None.  The eligibility requirements for annexation have been met.   

BUDGET/FINANCE IMPLICATIONS: Annexation of the property will eventually result 
in additional Town revenue through water tap fees and real estate transfer taxes. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:   
 

I move to approve Resolution No. 2 Series 2011 
 

& 
I move to approve Resolution No. 3 Series 2011 

 

 
P.O. Box 309  302 Pine Street 

Minturn, CO 81645 
Phone: 970-827-5645 

Fax: 970-827-5545 
Email: manager@minturn.org 

 
 

Town Council 
Mayor – Gordon “Hawkeye” Flaherty 

Mayor Pro Tem – George Brodin 
Councilwoman – Shelley Bellm 
Councilman – Jerry Bumgarner 

Councilman – Earle Bidez 
Councilman – Aggie Martinez 
Councilman – John Rosenfeld 

 

49



  

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
APPLICANT 
Eagle County School District RE-50J 
     
AGENDA ITEM BRIEF 
The purpose of this hearing is for the Town Council to determine whether the 
areas proposed to be annexed meet the applicable requirements of Section 30 
of Article II of the State Constitution and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105 of the 
Colorado Revised Statute (C.R.S.), or such parts thereof as may be required to 
establish eligibility for annexation to the Town of Minturn under the terms of 
Section 31-12-101 to 31-12-123 C.R.S.     
 
BACKGROUND 
The applicant submitted two petitions for annexation to the Town Clerk on 
November 17, 2010.  Per staff recommendation, the Town Council passed 
Amended Resolution 18 – 2010 and Amended Resolution 19 – 2010 stating that 
the petitions met the substantial requirements of section 30 of article II of the 
State Constitution and Section 31-12-107 of the Colorado Revised Statute.   
These Resolutions set the public hearing date for determining the eligibility of 
these parcels for annexation for February 16, 2011.  Passage of these Resolutions 
is the next step of the annexation process.  Once eligibility for annexation has 
been established by the passage of these Resolutions, the following steps will be 
necessary:  

 Adoption of separate Ordinances that annex into the Town each parcel; 
 Adoption of an Ordinance that authorizes the Mayor to sign an 

annexation agreement; 
 Adoption of an Ordinance that amends the Official Zone District Map of 

the Town of Minturn and establishes the Maloit Park Character Area 

TOWN OF MINTURN PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
Subject: Resolution No. 2 - 2011; A Resolution Establishing Eligibility For Annexation 

of the Eagle County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 1 and  
Resolution No. 3 – 2011;  A Resolution Establishing Eligibility For Annexation of the 

Eagle County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 2  
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 

Hearing Date: February 16, 2011 
Staff Recommendation: Approval 

Town of Minturn 
302 PINE STREET 

P.O. BOX 309, MINTURN, CO 81645 
(970) 827-5645   FAX (970) 827-5545  

 

Town Council 
MR. GORDON FLAHERTY, MAYOR 

MR. GEORGE BRODIN, MAYOR PRO TEM 
MRS. SHELLEY BELLM 

MR. JERRY BUMGARNER 
MR. EARLE BIDEZ 

MR. AGGIE MARTINEZ 
MR. JOHN ROSENFELD 

50



  

 Passage of a Subdivision Exemption Resolution that creates the 18.156 
acre Public Facility Zone of the Maloit Park Character Area.  This is the 
parcel of land that will be deeded to the Town of Minturn. 

 
LOCATION 
The 104.552 acre property is located at 1951 Highway 24.  (see attached map)  
This property is commonly referred to as Maloit Park. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Per Section 16-1-70 (Annexation Procedure) of the Minturn Municipal Code, 
“annexation of land shall be governed by the Colorado Municipal Annexation 
Act of 1965, as now existing or hereafter amended, except as otherwise 
provided in the Home Rule Charter or by ordinance hereafter enacted.”   
 
 
A parcel of land is eligible for annexation if it meets the requirements of C.R.S. 
31-12-104 – Eligibility for Annexation and 31-12-105 - Limitations.  The criteria for 
annexations are listed below in italics.  Staff response is provided in bold text. 
 

 That not less than one-sixth of the perimeter of the area 
proposed to be annexed is contiguous with the 
annexing municipality. 

 
The boundary of annexation parcel no. 1 is 7,274.81 feet.  One- sixth of that 
length is 1,212.47 feet.  There are 1,458.51 feet of annexation parcel no. 1 that 
are contiguous to the Town of Minturn.  Therefore, the contiguity requirement for 
parcel no.1 is fulfilled.  
 
The boundary of annexation parcel no. 2 is 5,092.721 feet.  One- sixth of that 
length is 849.79 feet.  There are 1,749.9 feet of annexation parcel no. 2 that are 
contiguous to the Town of Minturn.  Therefore, the contiguity requirement for 
parcel no. 2 is fulfilled.  

 
 That a community of interest exists between the area 

proposed to be annexed and the annexing 
municipality; that said area is urban or will be urbanized 
in the near future; and that said area is integrated with 
or is capable of being integrated with the annexing 
municipality. 

 
The Maloit Park area has been used by residents of Minturn and the surrounding 
area since the 1930’s.  The initial development in this area included a picnic 
area, ball field, tennis courts and a rodeo arena.  These improvements 
transformed the area into a center of social and recreational activity for Minturn 
and surrounding residents.  The ties between the Town of Minturn and the Maloit 
Park Area became stronger with the construction of a middle school, high 
school and recreation fields in 1964.  A “new” Minturn Middle School was 
constructed on site in 1978.  The fact that Minturn residents have been using the 
area for more than eighty years and sending their children to school on the 

51



  

property for more than forty years is evidence that a strong community of 
interest exists between the Town of Minturn and the Maloit Park Area.  
 
The proposed annexation agreement allows for up to 150 units to be constructed 
on the property.  The fact that Minturn currently provides water service to the 
property is evidence that the Maloit Park area is currently integrated with the 
Town of Minturn. 
 
 

 No land held in identical ownership has been divided 
into separate parts or parcels without the written 
consent of the landowners thereof. 
 

 No land comprising twenty acres or more with a 
valuation for assessment in excess of two hundred 
thousand dollars for ad valorem tax purposes for the 
year next preceding the annexation has been included 
without written consent of the landowners. 

 
 No annexation proceedings concerning the area 

proposed to be annexed have been commenced by 
another municipality. 
 

 This proposed annexation will not result in the 
detachment of the area proposed to be annexed from 
the Eagle County School District RE50J. 

 
 No part of the area proposed to be annexed extends 

the existing Town of Minturn boundary more than three 
miles in any direction from the Town in any one year. 

 
 No additional terms and conditions are being imposed by the 

Town upon the area proposed to be annexed in accordance 
with Section 31-12-112 C.R.S. 

 
 No petition for annexation election has been submitted and 

an election is not required pursuant to Sections 31-12-107 (2) 
and 31-12-112, C.R.S. 
 

All of the above statements are true and staff concludes that both parcels are 
eligible for annexation. 
 
ANNEXATION IMPACT REPORT 
C.R.S. 31-12-108.5 Annexation Impact Report – Requirements - states that an 
annexation impact report concerning the proposed annexation shall be 
prepared at least twenty-five days before the date of the annexation hearing.  
A copy of this annexation impact report is attached. 
 
 

52



  

PUBLIC NOTICE 
Public notice of the annexation was provided in accordance with C.R.S. 31-12-
108 – Setting Hearing Date – Notice Given.  A copy of the notice is attached to 
this report.   
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION  
Staff recommends approval of both Resolutions.  Approval of these Resolutions 
will certify that both parcels are eligible for annexation and that the governing 
body may thereupon annex the areas proposed to be annexed by Ordinance. 
(C.R.S. 31-12-111)  
 
 
DRAFT MOTION 
I move to approved Resolution 2 – 2011 
 
  & 
 
I move to approved Resolution 3 – 2011 
 
 
OR: 
 I move an alternate motion 
 
Respectfully Submitted 
 
 
________________________________ 
Chris Cerimele, Town Planner 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Annexation Impact Report 
Annexation Parcel No. 1 map 
Annexation Parcel No. 2 map 
Resolution 2 – 2011 
Resolution 3 – 2011 
Proof of Publication 

 

 

 
 
 

53



Maloit Park Annexation Impact Report 

 

I. Introduction. 

On November 16, 2010, the Eagle County School District RE-50J submitted two 
Petitions for Annexation to the Town of Minturn.  The first Petition for Annexation is 
for a 75.907 acre parcel of land commonly referred to as the Eagle County 
School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 1.  The second Petition for Annexation is for 
a 28.645 parcel of land commonly referred to as the Eagle County School 
District Maloit Park Parcel No. 2. The two annexation parcels comprise an area 
of approximately 104.5 acres. 

II. Report Purpose & Content 

Per section 31-12-108.5 of the Colorado Revised Statute (C.R.S.), the annexing 
municipality shall prepare an impact report concerning the proposed 
annexation at least twenty-five days before the date of the hearing established 
pursuant to section 31-12-108 C.R.S. and shall file one copy with the board of 
county commissioners governing the area proposed to be annexed within five 
days thereafter.  The report shall include the following: 

 A map or maps of the municipality and adjacent territory showing the 
following information: 

o The present and proposed boundaries of the municipality in the 
vicinity of the proposed annexation. 

o The present streets, major trunk water mains, sewer interceptors and 
outfalls, other utility lines and ditches, and the proposed extension 
of such streets and utility lines in the vicinity of the proposed 
annexation. 

o The existing and proposed land use pattern in the areas to be 
annexed. 

 A copy of any draft or final pre-annexation agreement, if available. 

 A statement setting forth the plans of the municipality for extending to or 
otherwise providing for, within the area to be annexed, municipal services 
performed by or on behalf of the municipality at the time of annexation. 

54



 A statement setting forth the method under which the municipality plans 
to finance the extension of the municipal services into the area to be 
annexed. 

 A statement identifying existing districts within the area to be annexed. 

 A statement on the effect of annexation upon local-public school district 
systems, including the estimated number of students generated and the 
capital construction required to educate such students. 

II-A. Property Overview 

The annexation parcels comprise approximately 105 acres and are bordered to 
the north, south and west by land owned by the United States Forest Service.  To 
the east, the property is bordered by land owned by Ginn Battle North, LLC.  
Access to the property is via State Highway 24.   

The northwest portion of the property is steeply sloped.  Cross Creek bisects this 
area and Minturn’s water treatment system occupies a portion of the western 
bank.  Portions of the southern half of the property are moderately sloped with 
areas of wetlands found in the southwest corner.  The remaining areas of the 
property are relatively flat and contain recreation fields, parking areas and 
existing building sites.  Large stands of aspen and spruce trees are found 
throughout the site. 

The following facilities and improvements are located on the property: Minturn 
Middle School and associated facilities; the Eagle Valley Community Fund 
building; single-family housing for Eagle County School District employees; 
recreation fields and parking areas. 

II-B. Maps 

The following maps are included in this report: 

 A map of the Town and adjacent territory showing the present and 
proposed boundaries for the Town of Minturn. (Exhibit A) 

 A utility map showing present streets, water mains and other utilities. 
(Exhibit B) 

 An existing land use map (Exhibit C) 

 A proposed land use map Exhibit D) 

55



    Exhibit A 

 

56



Exhibit B 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



Exhibit C 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

58



Exhibit D 

 

 

II-C. Existing and Future Extension of Municipal Services 

The property currently receives potable water from the Town of Minturn’s 
municipal water system.  Sanitary sewer collection and treatment services are 
provided by the Eagle River Water and Sanitation District.  These relationships will 
remain unchanged once the property has been annexed.   

No immediate extension of water and sewer services will be required as a result 
of this annexation.  Easements for future development are provided for in 
section 2.2 of the Annexation Agreement.  Any further extension of municipal 

59



services in the future would be paid for by any new development that 
necessitates such an extension and through tax revenues that accrue to the 
Town.   

The Eagle County Sheriff’s Office currently provides police protection for the 
property.  Once the property is annexed, this responsibly will become the 
Town’s.  The cost of extending police services to the property is anticipated to 
negligible due to the close proximity of the property and small number of 
residents living at the site. 

Fire and ambulance services will continue as they have historically been 
provided by the Eagle County Fire Protection District and the Eagle County 
Health Services District. 

II-D. Existing Districts 

The property lies within the Eagle River Fire Protection District, Eagle County 
Health Services District, Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, Minturn 
Cemetery District, Eagle Valley Library District, Colorado River Water 
Conservation District, and the Eagle County School District RE-50J.   

II-E.  Impact on Schools 

Current residents of the property have been accounted for by the Eagle County 
School District.  Future development of the property is limited to 150 single family 
equivalent (SFE) units.  Assuming that these 150 units will generate approximately 
345 people (150 x 2.3 people per SFE), full build-out of the property would 
generate approximately 45 students.  This figure assumes that there are two 
adults in each of the single family equivalent units.  The existing Minturn Middle 
School, located on-site, has a current enrollment of approximately 150 students 
and a capacity of greater than 400 students.  Therefore, no additional capital 
construction will be required as a result of this annexation. 

60



61



62



Page 1 of 2 

 
TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO.  2 – SERIES 2011 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MINTURN, 
COLORADO ESTABLISHING ELIGIBILITY FOR ANNEXATION OF THE 

EAGLE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT MALOIT PARK ANNEXATION 
PARCEL No. 1 

 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 31-12-107 (1) (a), C.R.S., a Petition for annexation 
to the Town of Minturn, Colorado of unincorporated land located in the County of Eagle, State 
of Colorado as more particularly described in the legal description, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, was submitted to the Town Clerk on 
November 17, 2010, and referred there from to the Town Council of the Town of Minturn, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Minturn passed Amended Resolution 
No. 18 – Series 2010 on January 5, 2011 finding and determining that a public hearing should be 
held to determine if the proposed annexation complies with Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution; Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S., or such parts thereof as may be 
required to establish eligibility for annexation to the Town of Minturn under the terms of 
Sections 31-12-101 to 31-12-123 C.R.S. 
 
 WHEREAS, public notice of the hearing was provided in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 31-12-108 C.R.S. and held such hearing on February 16, 2011, which date 
was not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days after the effective date of the Amended 
Resolution setting the hearing. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF MINTURN, COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO: 
 
 Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The Town Council of the Town of Minturn has 
determined that requirements of the applicable parts of Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution; and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S. have been met including, without 
limitation, the following findings of fact: 
 

1. Not less than one-sixth of the perimeter of the area proposed to be annexed is 
contiguous with the Town of Minturn. 

2. A community of interest exists between the area proposed to be annexed and the 
Town of Minturn, based on contiguity between the Town and the area proposed to 
be annexed. 

3. The area is urban or will be urbanized in the future. 
4. The area is integrated with or is capable of being integrated with the Town of 

Minturn. 
5. No land held in identical ownership has been divided into separate parts or parcels 

without the written consent of the landowners thereof. 
6. No land comprising twenty acres or more with a valuation for assessment in 

excess of two hundred thousand dollars for ad valorem tax purposes for the year 
next preceding the annexation has been included without written consent of the 
landowners 

7. No annexation proceedings concerning the area proposed to be annexed have 
been commenced by another municipality. 

8. This proposed annexation will not result in the detachment of the area proposed 
63



Page 2 of 2 

to be annexed from the Eagle County School District RE50J 
9. No part of the area proposed to be annexed extends the existing Town of Minturn 

boundary more than three miles in any direction from the Town in any one year. 
10. No additional terms and conditions are being imposed by the Town upon the area 

proposed to be annexed in accordance with Section 31-12-112 C.R.S. 
11. No petition for annexation election has been submitted and an election is not 

required pursuant to Sections 31-12-107 (2) and 31-12-112, C.R.S. 
12. Notice of this hearing was published and mailed as required by Section 31-12-

108, C.R.S. 
 

Section 2. Conclusions.  The Town Council of the Town of Minturn, pursuant to 
Section 31-12-110, C.R.S. therefore further finds and concludes the following: 

 
1. The area proposed for annexation as the Eagle County School District Maloit 

Park Parcel No. 1 is eligible for annexation pursuant to the applicable parts of 
Section 31-12-104, C.R.S. 

2. None of the limitations of Section 31-12-10,5 C.R.S. apply to restrict 
annexation of such parcel. 

3. The requirements of the applicable parts of Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S.  have been met. 

4. A determination has been made that additional terms and conditions are not to 
be imposed. 

5. An election is not required under Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution or Section 31-12-107(2), C.R.S. 

6. Said parcel may be annexed by Ordinance pursuant to Sections 31-12-107 (1) 
(g) and 31-12-111, C.R.S. without election. 

7. Having found that the Eagle County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 1 is 
eligible to be annexed, that the applicable provisions of Section 30 of Article II 
of the State Constitution  and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105 C.R.S. have 
been met, that an election is not required under Section 31-12-107(2), and that 
additional terms and conditions are not to be imposed, the Town Council of the 
Town of Minturn hereby resolves that the parcel should be annexed to the Town 
of Minturn by Ordinance and resolves that the Town Council of the Town of 
Minturn will undertake further proceedings to pass such an Ordinance 
confirming and adopting this Resolution in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of the Minturn Municipal Code and Charter and Municipal 
Annexation Act of 1965. 
 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED, ADOPTED AND RESOLVED this 16th day of February, 
2011. 
   
      TOWN OF MINTURN 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Town Clerk 

64



65



Page 1 of 2 

TOWN OF MINTURN, COLORADO 
RESOLUTION NO.  3 – SERIES 2011 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MINTURN, 
COLORADO ESTABLISHING ELIGIBILITY FOR ANNEXATION OF THE 

EAGLE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT MALOIT PARK PARCEL No. 2 
 
 WHEREAS, Pursuant to Section 31-12-107 (1) (a), C.R.S., a Petition for annexation 
to the Town of Minturn, Colorado of unincorporated land located in the County of Eagle, State 
of Colorado as more particularly described in the legal description, a copy of which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference, was submitted to the Town Clerk on 
November 17, 2010, and referred there from to the Town Council of the Town of Minturn, and; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Minturn passed Amended Resolution 
No. 19 – Series 2010 on January 5, 2011 finding and determining that a public hearing should be 
held to determine if the proposed annexation complies with Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution; Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S., or such parts thereof as may be 
required to establish eligibility for annexation to the Town of Minturn under the terms of 
Sections 31-12-101, to 31-12-123 C.R.S. 
 
 WHEREAS, public notice of the hearing was provided in accordance with the 
provisions of 31-12-108 C.R.S. and held such hearing on February 16, 2011, which date was not 
less than 30 days nor more than 60 days after the effective date of the Amended Resolution 
setting the hearing. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF MINTURN, COUNTY OF EAGLE, STATE OF COLORADO: 
 
 Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The Town Council of the Town of Minturn has 
determined that requirements of the applicable parts of Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution; and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S. have been met including, without 
limitation, the following findings of fact: 
 

1. Not less than one-sixth of the perimeter of the area proposed to be annexed is 
contiguous with the Town of Minturn. 

2. A community of interest exists between the area proposed to be annexed and the 
Town of Minturn, based on contiguity between the Town and the area proposed 
to be annexed. 

3. The area is urban or will be urbanized in the future. 
4. The area is integrated with or is capable of being integrated with the Town of 

Minturn. 
5. No land held in identical ownership has been divided into separate parts or 

parcels without the written consent of the landowners thereof. 
6. No land comprising twenty acres or more with a valuation for assessment in 

excess of two hundred thousand dollars for ad valorem tax purposes for the year 
next preceding the annexation has been included without written consent of the 
landowners 

7. No annexation proceedings concerning the area proposed to be annexed have 
been commenced by another municipality. 

8. This proposed annexation will not result in the detachment of the area proposed 
to be annexed from the Eagle County School District RE50J 

9. No part of the area proposed to be annexed extends the existing Town of 
66



Page 2 of 2 

Minturn boundary more than three miles in any direction from the Town in any 
one year. 

10. No additional terms and conditions are being imposed by the Town upon the area 
proposed to be annexed in accordance with Section 31-12-112 C.R.S. 

11. No petition for annexation election has been submitted and an election is not required 
pursuant to Sections 31-12-107 (2) and 31-12-112, C.R.S. 

12. Notice of this hearing was published and mailed as required by Section 31-12-108, 
C.R.S. 

 
Section 2. Conclusions.  The Town Council of the Town of Minturn, pursuant to 

Section 31-12-110, C.R.S. therefore further finds and concludes the following: 
 

1. The area proposed for annexation as the Eagle County School District Maloit 
Park Parcel No. 2 is eligible for annexation pursuant to the applicable parts of 
Section 31-12-104, C.R.S. 

2. None of the limitations of Section 31-12-105 C.R.S. apply to restrict 
annexation of such parcel. 

3. The requirements of the applicable parts of Section 30 of Article II of the 
State Constitution and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105, C.R.S.  have been 
met. 

4. A determination has been made that additional terms and conditions are not to 
be imposed. 

5. An election is not required under Section 30 of Article II of the State 
Constitution  or Section 31-12-107(2), C.R.S. 

6. Said parcel may be annexed by Ordinance pursuant to Sections 31-12-107 (1) 
(g) and 31-12-111, C.R.S. without election. 

7. Having found that the Eagle County School District Maloit Park Parcel No. 2 
is eligible to be annexed, that the applicable provisions of Section 30 of 
Article II of the State Constitution  and Sections 31-12-104 and 31-12-105 
C.R.S. have been met, that an election is not required under Section 31-12-
107(2), and that additional terms and conditions are not to be imposed, the 
Town Council of the Town of Minturn hereby resolves that the parcel should 
be annexed to the Town of Minturn by Ordinance and resolves that the Town 
Council of the Town of Minturn will undertake further proceedings to pass 
such an Ordinance confirming and adopting this Resolution in accordance 
with the applicable provisions of the Minturn Municipal Code and Charter and 
Municipal Annexation Act of 1965. 
 

 
INTRODUCED, READ, APPROVED, ADOPTED AND RESOLVED this 16th day of February, 
2011. 
   
      TOWN OF MINTURN 
 
 
      By:__________________________________ 
         Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Town Clerk 

67



68



Ad Name: 6035485A

Ad shown is not actual print size

Rep:

Start: 01/16/11

Issue 5

Class: 0990

6035485 Maloit Park Annex Parcel Copyline:

Editions:

Color:

Stop: 02/13/11

8VDI/8VD/

Pam Schultz

Lines:

Depth:

Columns:

Commission:

Net:

Total

33

0.00

0.00

0.00

1

66.00

Discount:

Payment

Thu, Jan 06, 2011

Ad Ticket #5

Name:
Address: P.O. Box 309

CO 81645

09:28:03

Acct: 1032852

Client:

Phone: (970)827-5645

Town of Minturn

E-Mail:

City: MINTURN

MANAGER@MINTURN.OR

6035485

Receipt 
Caller: ·

State: Zip:

Tax: 0.00

Original Id: 0

Rep:

2.69

0.00

69



Ad Name: 6035605A

Ad shown is not actual print size

Rep:

Start: 01/16/11

Issue 5

Class: 0990

66035605 Annex Parcel 2 maloit PaCopyline:

Editions:

Color:

Stop: 02/13/11

8VD/8VDI/

Pam Schultz

Lines:

Depth:

Columns:

Commission:

Net:

Total

33

0.00

0.00

0.00

1

66.00

Discount:

Payment

Thu, Jan 06, 2011

Ad Ticket #5

Name:
Address: P.O. Box 309

CO 81645

09:35:36

Acct: 1032852

Client:

Phone: (970)827-5645

Town of Minturn

E-Mail:

City: MINTURN

MANAGER@MINTURN.OR

6035605

Receipt 
Caller: Chris

State: Zip:

Tax: 0.00

Original Id: 0

Rep:

2.69

0.00

70



71




